United Nations A\c.4i53/5R .20

General Assembly Distr.: General
oy Y Fifty-third session 11 February 1999

N\ o English
=7 (Official Records Original: Russian

Special Political and Decolonization Committee (Fourth Committee)

Summary record of the 20th meeting
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Monday, 16 Novenit@98, at 3 p.m.

Chairman ME. MACEAO . ... (Mexico)

Contents
Agenda item 86: Questions relating to informati@otinued

This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the signature of a member of the
delegation concernedithin one week of the date of publicatibmthe Chief of the Official Records
Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza, and incorporated in a copy of the record.

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate corrigendum for each Committee.

98-82391 (E)


<<ODS JOB NO>>N9882391E<<ODS JOB NO>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>>A/C.4/53/SR.20<<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>><<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>> 


A/C.4/53/SR.20

The meeting was called to order at 3.10 p.m. established and made available to it. Secondly, the priorities
of United Nations information activities must be defined in
. ) . . ) the light of the issues before the United Nations system as a
Agenda item 86: Questions relating to information whole, with special focus on areas such as economic, social
(continued (A/53/21 and 509) and cultural development, poverty eradication, human rights,
1. Mr. Carik¢i (Turkey) said that in the modempeacek_eeping opt_erations, drug control, the threat_ of
interdependent world it was more important than ever befo:&réter_natlonal _terro_rlsm a_”d _the World Conf_erence against
.Racism, Racial Discrimination, Xenophobia and Related
olerance. Thirdly, the function of the Strategic

to maintain and develop cooperation, mutual understand|p
and respect between all Member States, all of which requir& . . L ;
8mmun|cat|ons Planning Group was becoming increasingly
portant in securing the necessary coordination between the

a free flow and exchange of accurate, complete and objectiv

information. In that connection, the Turkish Governmen"P! . . .
attached particular importance to the work done within theT1ous depgrtments_ ar_1d agencies in the Un_lted N‘?‘“.O”S
United Nations system regarding information an ystem, avoiding duplication in the field and carrying out joint

communications, especially the activities carried out by trPerOJeCtS and activities [approved at Headquarters].

Department of Public Information and the United Nationd.  Mr. Zaki (Egypt) said that his delegation supported the
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organizatiorstatement made by the representative of Indonesia on behalf
(UNESCO). of the Group of 77 and China. Egypt attached particular
ianportance to the activities of the Conittee on Information,
hich was responsible for developing appropriate policies
that area. He pointed out the need to adopt fresh
éproaches and ensure transparency in the Committee’s work.
e welcomed the results achieved by the Committee at its
lcwentieth session. His delegation had noted with interest the
o rmation on establishing a United Nations international
roadcasting service and wholeheartedly supported the
innovative projects in that area. However, it was concerned
' o about the delays in the work being carried out in that regard.
3. Turkeyattached great importance to the activities argc;l He expressed his delegation’s grafitude to the

effective functioning of the United Nations information ) ; . .
g Department for setting up a United Nations home page in

centres, intensification of the links in the field between thg\rabic which would allow people in Arab countries who were

Department of Public Information and the developin . L .
part - . . P ﬁnerested in the Organization’s work to obtain the relevant
countries, training of journalists and broadcasters from the

developing countries and the adoption of modern, molréformanon through that important channel. However, the

efficient technology for the preparation and dissemination ?rfad|t|onal methods of broadcasting information — radio,

information materials. The report of the Secretary-GenerélelIeVISIOn and the press — should not be forgotten. He called

entitled “Questions relating to information” (A/5309) on the Secretariat to continue to take steps in that area also.

showed that the significant progress that had been made in%ﬁ emphasized the importance of supporting the United

those areas of the Department's work was the result Of’;\tlons information centres in Member States. His delegation

. o , had taken part in the recent seminar on that issue and hoped
placing the communications function at the heart of th . -

: : . that the Secretariat would take decisive steps to remove the
strategic management of the United Nations. In that. ~ - . . .

) ifficulties being encountered by some information centres
connection, a number of general comments were called for.

First, concerning the relationship between quality an%Pd in particular the problems arising out of the centres

o . . erging with United Nations Development Programme
guantity in the services provided by the Department and t%N?:)Pg) field offices. Further. he poinl::ed to the ?leed to
resources allotted to its activities in the prevailing critica : '

financial situation, it was evident that given the increasergv't"".IIZe field activities, especially those relating to the
uestion of Palestine.

demand for public information the Department could not bd
expected to continue undertaking further responsibiliti€s ~ Mr. Tekaya (Tunisia) expressed his delegation’s

without additional resources. His delegation therefoigupport for the statement by the representative of Indonesia
believed that, with due respect for the principle of financinghich had set out the position of the Group of 77 and China
within existing resources, a solid financial basi®n extremely important, information-related issues. As a
commensurate with the Department's needs must besult of scientific and technological progress in the field of

2. Turkeyhad accumulated much experience in that fiel
and the level of development of communications in Turke
had enabled it to keep pace. At the same time, Turkg
understood the aspirations and preoccupations of t
developing countries in the information and communicatio
field and appreciated the developing countries’ need f
assistance in building up the necessary communications
information infrastructure, for which free and mor
widespread dissemination of information were required.



A/C.4/53/SR.20

information and communications, significant progress had resolutions, the General Assembly had particularly stressed
been made which would help solve many social and economic  the role which the information centres played in developing
problems and strengthen the foundations of democracy and countries. Tunisia believed that the consideration of the
liberty in the world’s various countries. Within its overall matter should continue.

policy framework, Tunisia had put information an

communications at the top of its list of priorities. Furthegﬁpported the statement made by the representative of
steps were being taken to increase the role of informationleonesia on behalf of the Group of 77 and ChinacBntly,

ensurin_g freedom qf the press and_of exprgssion anddg a result of technical progress, information and
expanding '_che capacity of t_he apprc_)prlate bodies to_exgrcks(?mmunications had acquired enormous significance, and
more <_affect|ve control over mformatl(_Jn and commumcaﬂonr?]ey should become a useful instrument in the socmemic

act|_\/|t|esj Also,_the,lnternet was bem_g used more qn_d mO&Svelopment of all the peoples. Nevertheless, that progress,
actwgly n Tun|§|as schools.and offices, a}nd Tumsm Waﬁlong with positive aspects, had a negative side too: the
keeping pace with technological progress in that field. technological gap between the developed and the developing

7. Information was playing an extremely important role  countries was steadily widening. The solution of that problem,
during the current period of globalization, and it was to be of course, was not to reject the indisputable benefits of
hoped that the United Nations would make use of the progressinthose spheres, but to facilitate the advancement
opportunities that were opening up in that area to help of the developing countries to a level of technological
strengthen peace, bring growth and prosperity to the world’s  development at which they would not only be able to use those
peoples and achieve sustainable development. Unfortunately, means, but also become full-fledged participants in the
the gap between the developed and the developing countries exchange of information.

in the communications.area was S.ti” exFremely Wid,e.' ThEy.  The international community should make serious and
least developed countries were still not in any condition té?onsistent efforts to establish a new world information and

make advantageous use of technological progress JBmmunication order, which would make it possible to

communications to achieve stable development. In thé’t?engthenthe technical potential of the developing countries.

connection, Tunisia called for solidarity to be shown Witkl’he United Nations, and specifically the Department of

those countries and for partnerships to be developed W_E’rﬂjblic Information, could and should facilitate those efforts,

them. The Organizgtion 009'0' play a very prominent mIe,'Qnd in that connection he welcomed the practical approach
that regard. The United Nations and UNESCO were maknagken by UNESCO

a major contribution to developing North-South cooperation

and to increasing the capacity of the countries of the South}&- An even more important matter than the elimination of
the information field. the existing technological gap and facilitation of the access

8 With d to th entati f th K of th of the developing countries to information on the Internet and
' th regard fo the reorientation ot the work ot Ing, optical disk system was the preservation of the

E;eparftment of Public Informat|ocri1,bwrt1;]chg/vas eth|széged IEB[ganization’s ability to disseminate information on its work
€ relorm programme proposed by the Secretary- enert%rough traditional channels, including the radio. In that

the Department was making significant efforts to stay abre nnection, his delegation noted the discussion in the

with scientific and technological progress. It was makin&ommittee on Information of the development of the United

increasing use of the Internet, which opened out N€Wations international radio broadcasting capacity. While

possibilities for the dissemination of information. TuniSi%ommending the efforts of the Secretariat in that sphere, his

hoped_that those efforts would “cl;ont@nue. He express«aglegaﬁon noted that existing programmes should not suffer,
appreciation to the Dag Hammarskjéld Library for the SUppPOLt.

. . 7 "~and that such broadcasts should be directed in the first place
it provided every day to the _Perma.ment.Mlssmn of Tun's""l‘owards the developing countries.

As to the Internet, he noted with satisfaction that recently the
Department had created a home page in Arabic. That was &t In view of the important role of the United Nations
another important achievement of the Department in its wotkformation centres in disseminating information about the
during the current year. The Department must be providéyganization, the centres should have tkeessary financial
with sufficient resources to enable it to expand théesources to carry out their work. Recalling its ftias on the
CyberSchoolBus project on the Internet, since that proje@yestion of integrating the information centres with UNDP
was very popular with the general public. Lastly, with regar@ffices, his delegation once again declared that, in accordance
to the question of integrating the information centres witWith the relevant resolutions of the General Assembly, a
UNDP field offices, it $iould be noted that, in a number ofPrecondition for such integratiomsuld be the preservation

Mr. Dausa (Cuba) said that his delegation fully



A/C.4/53/SR.20

of the independence of those centres and the effectiveness of

their work. The question of integration should be resolved on

relations among nations and the promotion of international
cooperation highlighted the strategic role that the Department

a case-by-case basis, taking into account the views of theuldplay in building public support for the Organization.

Member States in which those centres were located. At ttﬂg

next meeting of the Committee on Information, the Secretary-,
General would present a report on the first steps with reg

of that report would be of great importance.

13. Objective information, taking into account the social
and cultural characteristics of various peoples, would
undoubtedly help strengthen relations between countries.
However, the use of information for political purposes,
particularly to undermine sovereignty and interfere in the
internal affairs of other countries, should be prohibited by the
international community. As indicated in the resolution
adopted recently by the First Committee, information

technologies and means could be used for purposes that were

inconsistent with the objectives of ensuring international
stability and security. The resolution embodied the idea, ful

supported by his delegation, that the use of informatiq{fa'tio

In that regard, his delegation noted that the Department

Was paying increasing attention to the subject of sustainable

. : . ) . -economic and social development in the work of the
to integrating the information centres, and the Cons'derat'mganization

Ghana was convinced that sustainable

development held the key to global peace, and therefore
appreciated the Department’s focus of raising the profile of

the African continent in the media. Examples were the
prominent coverage in the world press of the report of the

Secretary-General to the General Assembly on the causes of

conflictand the promotion of durable peace and sustainable
development in Africa and the Department’s information

campaign in connection with President Clinton’s recent visit
to Africa. The Department had also made an important

contribution by publicizing information about Africa at the
recent Tokyo Conference on African Development.

Ghana noted the Department’s role in support of United
ns efforts to maintain international peace and security

resources or technologies for criminal or terrorist PUrPOS@§ough the observance of the fiftieth anniversary of United

must be prevented.

14. That idea was directly related to Cuba’s repeated
comments in the Committee on Information and the Fourth
Committee about the electronic war which was being waged
against it. Every week over 1,953 hours of radio and
television broadcasts were transmitted to Cuba from the
territory of the United States of America, which spent over
US$ 22 million a year on that electronic war against Cuba.
Those actions not only undermined Cuba’s sovereignty, but
also ran counter to the most elementary norms of international
law and the rules established by the International
Telecommunication Union. Those broadcasts distorted the
real situation in Cuba, and directly aided subversive and
terrorist actions against Cuba. His delegation once again

condemned that aggression and rejected the attempts of the

United States of America to determine what kind of

Nations peacekeeping, support for field missions, and the

preparation of materials for posting on the Internet. Ghana
also appreciated the Department’s efforts to harness new
informatidmtdaogies, which were growing extremely
rapidly, and expected the Department to be at the forefront,
particularly through the United Nations information centres
in developing countries. It was only when those countries
were assisted in acquiring new information technologies that
the Department would be able to rely on their local resources
for the dissemination of information on the Organization.
Ghana noted that traditional means of information, such as the
press, radio and television, would remain for a long time the
primary media for many countries, and that the use of such
means should under no circumstances be reduced. Ghana
renewed its call for the establishment of a new world

information and communication order. If the developing

information the Cubans should receive; in that connectiomundries were left too far behind in entering the new

Cuba would continue to take the necessary steps to counter

that electronic war.

15. Mr. Osei (Ghana) said that in view of the expandin
role of the United Nations in international affairs and the
increasing interest of the peoples of the world in its activities,
the work of the Department of Public Information was of

critical importance. The Department had been established out

of the conviction that the Organization would not be able to

pursue its objectives successfully unless the people of the

information superhighway, that would perpetuate the

inequalities which already existed between the North and the
gSouth in the field of social and economic development.

18.

Ghana attached great importance to the activities of the
United Nations information centres in Ghana and elsewhere.

The centres could do their job more effectively if they were

given adequate resources. In that connection, he welcomed
the strategic steps taken by the centres over the previous year
to enhance their dissemination of information about the

world were fully informed of its objectives. The expanding Organization’s work. The provision of technical equipment

responsibilities of the United Nations in the maintenance of
international peace and security, the development of friendly

and staff training to broaden information outreach to local
audiences was commendable. Similarly, the Dag



A/C.4/53/SR.20

Hammarskjold Library was crucial to the work of many

delegations, particularly those that did not have the latest
technology at their disposal. The expansion of the Library's
facilities, such as the creation of an electronic news service
about the United Nations, the training programme in
electronic information retrieval and the electronic
dissemination of the most important information t

Governments and staff by electronic mail, was significant

increasing information delivery from the Department o
Public Information.

19. Mr. Vu Tran Phong (Viet Nam) said that his
delegation fully associated itself with the statement by the
representative of Indonesia speaking on behalf of the Group
of 77 and China. At a time of change and reform and of

enormous advances in the field of communications and
information, the United Nations had, as never before, clearly
demonstrated the link between peace, security and
development. In his delegation’s view, the maintenance of
international peace and security and the promotion of
economic and social development were the Organization’s
two principal tasks. Information had a crucial role to play in

that regard and therefore so did the activities of the

Department of Public Information. He welcomed the23

Department’s internal reform efforts, including diversificatio
of its media outreach, which should help promote a mo
balanced and equitable information system.

20. His delegation recognized the importance of revitalizing
the work of the United Nations system in the field of
information and informatics and also the important role
played by the information centres in providing information
about the Organization’s activities in Member States.
Concerning the integration of the information centres with the
United Nations Development Programme (UNDP) offices,
his delegation shared the views of the Group of 77 and China

that it should be done on a case-by-case basis and taking the

view of the host country into account. Also, the views of the
Member States must be taken into account in developing

proposals on restructuring the information centres and in tng

Secretary-General's establishment of regional hubs.

21. His delegation was concerned about the great disparity
between the developing and the developed countries in the

outh cooperation
ommunication and called on the developed countries to help
the developing countries build communication infrastructures

to narrow the gap in that regard. Although it was important
for the Organization to use the Internet, traditional media

information about the Organization’s work amongst Member

States. Only when technical assistance and accurate

information were provided, would it be possible to establish

a new, more just and more effective world information and

communication order that would respect the cultural and
social values and the identity and sovereignty of all States.

His delegation reaffirmed its commitment to South-
in the field of information and

remained indispensable. Radio broadcasting remained the

most direct and cost-effective medium for reaching audiences

throughout the world, especially in the devedopinigs,

and in that connection his delegation had taken note of the
Department’'s plan to launch a pilot international radio
broadcasting plan before the end of the current year. Lastly,
he stressed that information had an important role to play in
promoting peace and international understanding and that the

public information efforts of the United Nations should focus
on that aim.

Mr. Kouliev (Azerbaijan) said that his country attached

reat importance to free access to and free distribution of
fformation. As a newly independent State that had taken the
democratic path only recently, Azerbaijan viewed information
freedom as a tool for promoting the principles of liberalism
and transparency. Consequently, in implementation of that
policy, the leadership of Azerbaijan had invited to its recent
presidential elections about 300 observers from various
international organizations, who had attested to the fact that
afree choice had been made by Azerbaijan’s people. On the
eve of the election campaign, President Aliyev had signed a

decree abolishing censorship completely. Currently, about
500 different publishing houses reflecting the whole spectrum

of Azerbaijanitigad and cultural life were registered and

in operation there.
Azerbaijan fully supported the ideas and goals set out

in the Secretary-General's report (A/53/509). One of the most

important provisions of the new strategy was the
strengthening of the Organization’s ability to communicate

communication and information field resulting from the at the country and regional levels to ensure that the global

developing countries’ lack of the necessary infrastructure and
technology. The international community and the United
Nations should strive to do away with that imbalance, and the
primary task in that regard was to render technical assistance
to the developing countries for improving their
communication systems. The Organization as a whole and the

messages of the United Nations both reflected and were

tailored to national orientations. Thus, further strengthening

the role of the United Nations information centres in the field
was one important way to carry out the fundamental tasks set

out in the Charter. His delegation noted the positive role

played in Azerbaijan by those representing the Department

Department of Public Information in particular must playa of Public Information, who were doing important work in

key role in narrowing the gap by disseminating accurate



A/C.4/53/SR.20

disseminating information there about the various areas of and place the information and communications function at the
United Nations activity. heart of the Organization’s strategy. In that connection, he

25. He supported the Secretary-General's view as reflect‘@ﬁlcomed the establi_shment of_a Strateg_ic Communications
in the report that the print medium remained one of th%lannmg Group, which was dlsc_ussed in the report of the
principal means of influencing public opinion around thgecretary—G_eneral to the Committee on Infc_>rmat|on_ on the
world. The work of regional representatives was promotin'qulem‘:"ntatlon of the measures regarding information and

close cooperation with the United Nations system as a whof@munications (A/AC.198/1998/2), and which had already

The traditional mass media — press, radio and television started work, and the appointment to the Office of the Under-

were especially important in the developing countries atEcretary-General - for - Communications and ~Public
countries with economies in transition. He supported the idg‘gormatlon ofa Director to head the Information Technology
expressed in the report of establishing a United Natim_%ectlon. Those measures co_uld strengthen the exchange of
international radio broadcasting capacity, while stressing tﬁjeeas atthe strategic and tactical levels and help formulate a

need to broadcast not only in English and French but alsoqﬂr_nmunic_ations strategy to be adopted by a!l parts of _the
the Organization’s other official languages, which woulb’n'ted Nations system. The Department of Public Information

significantly expand the channel’'s audience would necessarily play a leading role in that process. In view
' of the rapid changes that were constantly taking place in the

26.  While welcoming the Department's efforts and notingyternational arena, the Department must have the flexibility
Its enormous e'xdvan(':es inthe eIectromp information field, hig adjust its emphasis and orientations to emerging situations
delegation believed it necessary to point out that, because;@fy must also have the resources to do so. Further, the
the mgnlfolq ECOnamic and fmaqqal problemg faced DYepartment must be able to respond promptly to feedback
countries with economies in transition, the traditional masgm its audience so as to ensure that the information which

media were still the principal sources of information therg; yrovided was always both relevant and understandable.
Still, the Department should continue to pay a great deal OP

attention to assistance to and cooperation with develop’i&?' Asthe Secretary—?enereil‘s rep.ort |nFj|cate('3I,' the advent
countries and countries with economies in transition in t the Inte'rnet as the ,ff’””h medium, in addition to the
electronic information field as well. The Department’?ress' radio and television, had opened up unprecedented

operational activities must also be strengthened, particulaﬁ‘)’/enugs_ for cor'nrnumcatlon,.and. e\{ery effort should be .made
at a time when crises and conflicts were becoming molguse itin providing the public with information about United
acute Nations activities. A two-way flow of information would

B o enable people to understand those activities better and gain
27. Azerbaijan welcomed the significant progress made ifyetter grasp of how those activities were relevant to them.

the e_Iectronic information field ar.1d the C(_)rresponding Iibr.arly] that connection, his delegation supported the Department’s
services. Internet access to United Nations documents in @loduction of online chat channels to United Nations experts
official languages had enabled permanent missions and otB@fvarious issues. Work must also continue on the United
official State offices to obtain useful information from theyations Web site so that the media around the world could

importance of the activities of the Working Group on . " . I
Informatics. 30. Atthe same time, the traditional means of disseminating

) ) . information, such as radio and television, would continue to

mass media played in the contemporary world could not Rgyyember 1998, the Permanent Mission of Japan would join
overemphasized, the Department of Public Information, &Ssponsoring the World Television Forum, during which the
the centre for all United Nations activities in the field ofJapanese Broadcasting Corporation (NHK) would
communication and information, must play a more active rolgsmonstrate high-definition television to the United Nations.
in disseminating information about the Organization’s workpe importance of radio could not be overstated, especially
around the world by gaining the broad public support for g the developing countries, because of its low cost and wide
without which the Organization would not be able to functiogyajlability; his delegation therefore looked forward to the
effectively. His delegation supported the goals set out in thgport of the Secretary-General on the pilot project to revive

Secretary-General’s report (A/53/509): to permeate thgrect broadcasts by United Nations Radio.
Organization with the communications culture, develop a

more effective communications strategy, disseminate relevady Direct contact between the United Nations and local

information in an effective, coordinated and timely mannet°mmunities was extremely important. Thus, the United
Nations Information Centre in Tokyo was effectively



A/C.4/53/SR.20

enhancing public awareness in Japan of United Nations was experiencing strong growth: currently, the Internet
activities, which was very important for maintaining support empl®@@,000 people in Singapore, up fr&40,000 in

there for them. During the Secretary-General’s recent visif96, out of a population of 3 ition. The number of Web

to Japan, the Academic Council for the United Nations had sites had also shot up, from2@86ito 4,000 in 1998. In

been established there to promote support for the its Internet-related activities, Singapore was seeking to make
Organization. The new organization would supplement the use of the principle of industry self-regulation. The
activities of the 43 branches of the United Nationsundamental responsibility for information content going onto
Association of Japan in ensuring public support for the the Internet must lie with the leaders of the industry. Both the
Organization’s activities. He expressed the hope that the content-related and the technological aspects of the Internet
Department of Public Information would develop its activities were regulated on the basis of a set of minimum standards
in Japan in cooperation with those associations. In that rather than by imposing any censorship limitations. One of
context, the Department must be provided with sufficient the requirements was to bar access to about 100 very specific
resources, and his delegation opposed any arbitrary, undesirable sites;the Internet Code of Pthctideviat
percentage reductions in the Department’s budget, believing the community found offensive or harmful to Singapore’s
that each activity should be reviewed regularly on the basis racial and religious harmony. Although, so far, no punitive
of its relevance and effectiveness. action had been taken against anyone in the industry, the mere

32. Ms. Ho (Singapore) said that, as the Secretary_Gene'pdqssibility ofpunishment for prohipited actties seemed to _
had stated in his report (A/53/509), tewlogical progress have a certain deterrent effect. Singapore was encouraging

had perhaps had its most profound impact in tht@e industry to regulate itself and take its own initiatives

communications and information field, with the Interne"f“:“]{jlinSt harmiul content and viruses. Singapore supported
leading the information revolution. The convergence ntent classification according to international standard

telecommunications, computer and broadcasting technolog%gdgl'nes' and every Ifnternet Service pr?_"'dgr was reql%urﬁd
would have an even greater impact on the way informatidf ©ffer. as an option for parents, a sanitized version of the

was transmitted. Faster and more powerful telecommunicatiltgﬁer_net called the “Family Access Network ' '!'he fam_|ly
networks now enabled data to be sent in millisecongiervices would prevent access to undesirable information by

whereas television provided access to varied forms gpowing parents to specify what sites their children could

information from almosteverywhere.Contemporarysatellit%ccess' However, as the Internet was a transnational

systems were making it possible for people to make calls fr T enomenon, It \INIaS nlecessarr]y tr? |mp(|)dse ISUCE rlegulat|t())n at
any part of the world to any other. the international level too, which would also help combat

other transboundary crimes in cyberspace.
33. The Internet, which was often called the “fourth”

medium after the press, radio and television, was helpi Mr. Skrypko (Belarus) said that the National

annihilate distance between societies and nations. Althou R_mmlttee to commemorate the _f|ft|eth an_nlversary of the
the traditional mass media retained their importance guversal Declaration of Human Rights, which had been set

societies’ main information channel, the informatiorllprydecree of the President of Belarus, was carrying out a

technology revolution was changing the way people lived arWJde range measures to publicize human rights and enhance

worked: now, people with access to a computer could not orf{¥areness in that area by involving theuatry's major mass

use all the world’s information, they could provide it too_media. The National Assembly of Belarus had held extensive

However, as it was a global, transboundary phenomenon, fif@fliamentary hearings on human rights problems, and
Internet did pose certain problems of harmful content atPProPriate recommendations had been formulated on the
influences that conflicted with the traditions and values SIS Of those hearings; in particular, provision had been
particular societies. Countries felt powerless in the face Bi2de for the preparation of a National Plan of Action in the

those problems because the growth of cyberspace wrﬁém?n, rights field and for harmonizing the relevant
uncontrolled. Instead of resisting change, States should rattfgis!ation.

adapt to the new ways of doing things to keep some control 36. In that context, the Belarusian delegation supported the
over the general direction of technological progress. Secretary-General’'s reform proposals on reorienting the

34. The verysurvival of Singapore, a small country with agrgamzanon’s activities in the |nf0rmat|on area and
groughly approved of the measures to introduce a culture

open economy, depended on its ability to adapt to the chan et R o
taking place around the world. Singapore was building i communications throughout the Organization’s activities,
Iplace the information function at the very heart of the

own information superhighway to link up with the othe o : hen the role of
information superhighways of the world. The Internet industr?rgamlzatlon s strategic management, strengthen the role o



A/C.4/53/SR.20

the Department of Public Information and strengthen alsothe 39. His delegation had examined with interest the
Organization’s ability to communicate at the country and Secretary-General’'s proposal to establish an international
regional levels. In his delegation’s opinion, the reform of the broadcasting service for United Nations Radio and believed
information sector should be carried out in close cooperation that during implementation of the pilot project and, most
with the States Members of the Organization, in the first importantly, in the start-up phase of the direct broadcasting
instance through the Committee on Information, and taking service itself, the principle of the Organization’s linguistic
into account national interests, but without prejudice to the diversity must be respected. He particularly emphasized the
Department’s priority programmes which had already been importance of establishing a direct broadcast capacity in
approved. Russian, a language used by an audience of nmillionmin

37. Itwas important to strengthen activities highlighting thtehe many (lzo(ljj_ntrlgs |0f theIC(C)Immon_vv_eaItr;] of Indepem_jent
practical difficulties which countries with economies i tates, including Belarus. In determining the target regions

transition were facing along the road towards integratir{ r broadcasting live programmes, the assumption should be

themselves into the global economy and implementing théfiat the degreikofhlnt(_er(_asft In L_Jmted Ngtlloni Rad'(()j
democratic transformations. By focusing on problems Speci%ogrammes — like that in information materials that use

to the transition period, the Department of Public Informatio?lther forms of mass media such as the press and television —

could play an important role in mobilizing internationaf’vOUId be highest primarily in countries where there was

assistance to help those countries achieve sustainamtﬁd accessto:]hellat(la(stfcommunlcatlonﬂnmio?lels such .
development in the social, economic, environmental and ottfit the Internet. That lack of access was a particularly pressing

fields. The Government of Belarus thought highly of thgroblem for States with economies in transition and the

activities being carried out by the information component (gfevelopmg countries.

the United Nations office in Minsk, with whose cooperation 40Mr. Zohar (Israel) stressed that Israel, as a democratic

the Centre for United Nations Studies in Belarus had been set republic, upheld freedom of speech and information and,
up. Given the increasing volume of work resulting from the despite the difficulties its situation posed, did not restrict
increase in interest on the part of the people of Belarus inthe freedom of the press. Currently, a dozen newspapers in
Organization’s activities, his delegation believed that that Hebrew and several in ottpeadges, including Arabic and
component’s capacity should be enhanced. English, appeared regularly, as did over 1,000 periodicals.

38. His delegation believed that it was vitally necessary %rlvate stations competed with State-controlled radio, and

continue and redouble the efforts by the Department and Otﬁg;ae_ll_telewsmn viewers had unrestricted access to global
parts of the United Nations system, in particular the Unitdglevision channels_through cable ne_tworks. Free access to
Nations Humanitarian Assistance Coordination Unit, in thté“_a I_nternet was n_ot1ust g!J'ara”tee_d' itwas encou_rageql. The
area of long-term post-Chernobyl information adies with !\/I|n|stry_ of Foreign Affairs had its own Web site with
a view to mobilizing international assistance to eliminate gigformation about the peace processin aI_I its aspects. Israel
ever-increasing consequences of the disaster. The tasiWpPorted freedom of access to information throughout the
increasing the world community’s awareness of th\gorld anq respected the r|g.ht apd duty ofJournaI|§ts to go
humanitarian, medical and environmental consequencesaBPUt their business. Journalists in Israel played an important
that nuclear accident must be made part of the mandate §Pif @ watchdogs of democracy and protectors of human and
reformed Department of Public Information that would p&onsumer rights.
capable of making a substantive contribution to eliminating 4Ms. Durrant (Jamaica) speaking on behalf of the 14
the “Chernobyl fatigue” that had recently taken shape amongst ~ States members of the Caribbean Community (CARICOM)
the donor countries, and was adversely affecting the further that were also States Members of the United Nations, said that
financing of the rehabilitation projects that had been CARICOM associated itself with the statement made on
developed by the Organization. The creation of a special behalf of the Group of 77 and China. Over the previous two
Chernobyl section on the United Nations home page, with decades, thankisriolegical progress in the information
information on the activities being carried out by the field, the world had become much more close-knit. The
Organization and the affected States to minimize the effects information revolution was the key to the future of the
of the accident, might be a major step in that direction. develomngtties: access to information, in essence, made
Interested countries could assist the Department of Public  possible better education, improved health care and increased
Information in that matter by providing the relevant competitiveness and allowed people to play a more active role
information. in the world’s affairs. In that connection, the CARICOM
countries fully supported the efforts of the United Nations



A/C.4/53/SR.20

Children’s Fund (UNICEF), the United Nations Educational, scope of the daily briefings by the Office of the Spokesman
Scientific and Cultural Organization (UNESCO), the United of the Secretary-General.

_Nat|ons I_Develop_ment Programme (UNDP) and ther bOd_'ﬁi. Alongside the three traditional media — the press, radio

in the United Nations system to improve access to mformau%qld television — the United Nations should take full

and information technology, especially in developin dvantage of the Internet, the new “fourth” mass medium. Her

countries. The comr_nun_ications funct_ion must be placed at t glegation was pleased to note the plans for a new media page
heart of the Organization's strategic management. Equa ¥ the United Nations Web site, the substantial increase in

important was the emphasis on developing a culture fﬁe volume of multimedia postings, the iattuction of online

commumcanons throughout the Organization. In th t channels to United Nations experts and an expansion in
connection she applauded the efforts of the Department

Public Inf tion. the Working G In i ‘in les and marketing of United Nations publications and
ublic Thformation, the Yorking toroup on INTormatics anty, e ja1s. She noted the success of the United Nations Web
the Dag Hammarskjéld Library aimed at making use of th

: ) ite, where the number of hits in 1998 had been twice the
whole vast array of information resources. The flow o

inf i gt ¢ missi th ht 997 figure. The “Cyber Swol Bus” project, which targeted
Information coming fo permanent missions throug ht‘ﬁousands of schoolchildren in over 60 countries, had become

Ibnt::‘rnet was m.akmg |tdpt(?1$sg)le toteqhtance commumcahogﬁ effective tool for promoting the Organization’s activities
etween missions and the Secretariat. amongst young people.

42. A number of aspects of the Secretary-General’s repgp
(A/53/509) which related to increasing public awareness 0f ..
the Organization’s activities were of importance to thE‘

Radio was perhaps the most cost-effective of the mass
edia. In that connection, the creation of a United Nations

b he theref 4 wi ternational radio broadcasting capacity was a worthwhile
CARICOM Member States. She therefore noted wit otion. The activities of the Caribbean Radio Unit had

satisfaction Fhe public i_nformation programme that had _be%\proved awareness amongst Caribbean people of United

u?dirtalgen n colnnectlonk\)/:/lth ther\:uh@98|§p§mal SesZ'IonNations activities which impacted on their region. She had

OC t eCO enlerak Ads?em );on t e.wlcl)r rug probiem,, qoubt that that Unit should have its opportunities for direct
ARICOM looked forward to a similar programme 'Nradio broadcasting augmented. At the same time, greater

cCon]rJectlon W'tu thse Sp,ec'%ll se33|or|1 to reV|e\;vSThe l?IOIb man and financial resources needed to be allocated to the
onference on the Sustainable Development of Small Isla ional centres so that the demand for information about the

Developing States. The focus on enhancing links between ited Nations could be properly satisfied. CARICOM

United Nations, the media and broad sectors of civil socieé;ljloporteol full programming in French and Creole for the
was certainly a step in the right direction. CARICO eople of Haiti and wished to see more United Nations

Welco.med the creatllon of the Strategic Co_mmunl.cano Blevision stations with multi-channel caphbty, particularly
Planning Group, which would strengthen links with th n the developing countries. The Caribbean region in

meq'a’ non-gover.nmental organizations, academia, thg.icijar could benefit from additional direct linkages
business community and young people. between United Nations Television and television stations in
43. CARICOM welcomed the efforts of the Department of the region.

Public Information and other Secretariat units which wer The work of the United Nations information centres was

currently working together to plan and implementinformatiogxt'remely important: in 1998, they had helped give high-

coampqlgns an’d focui a|t_t|ent|on on.newsmaklng asge(r:]ts Ofyfk(?bility coverage to a whole range of United Nations events.
. ;ganlzgtlons \évor abowre]:ve[;, It was concernedt aé thIelowever, they must give greater emphasis to issues of
Information produced by the Department seemed t0 be A8, o, ¢ the developing countries, such as external debt,

match for the flood of negative and inaccurate Inforr’n""t'oﬁovertyeradication and sustainable economic development.

often produced bythg e.>.<ternal medla-. Thg Department ShOLHﬁie CARICOM member countries again stressed the need for
examine the possibility of entering into more activ

. ih S d ori n information officer in the UNDP office in Jamaica, which
coopera_tlon arrangements with State an prl_vate MEQ&rved the northern Caribbean. The information officer would
companies to produce more documentaries which could

8mp|ement the work of the United Nation Information

aired on national and international television channels. The, .. i Port-of-Spain, which had responsibility for the
Department should capitalize on the uniqueness of tQﬁ !

R - . T i idely dispersed territories of the Caribbean.
Organization’s activities by disseminating information about - . . _ _
those activities to a wider audience. Other public informatigh’- Mr. Chirila  (Romania) said that his delegation

measures too were encouraging, SUCh as the broadening$ﬁociated |tse|f W|th the statement made on behalf Of the
European Union and associated States. The great importance



A/C.4/53/SR.20

Romania attached to United Nations activities in information in making the decisions that affected their lives. Some
field sprang from an awareness of the effectiveness of developed countries, thanks to their technological
information as a means of mobilizing Governments and civil advancement, enjoyed a virtual monopoly in the distribution
society in all countries behind the cause of peace, of information that left the developing countries on the
development and human rights. For the same reason, his sidelines. Information should not undermine cultural and
delegation shared the view that the United Nations should be moral values, distort facts or demonstrate bias towards other
projected as an open and transparent organization that was countridssfration of that argument was the violation
accessible to all, and so the communications function was not  of oantcy’'s sovereignty by radio and television

just a support function but an integral part of the transmissions directed specifically against that country for
Organization’s programme. His delegation therefore political and subversive ends. Inotihattion, the need to
supported the Secretary-General’s conceptual framework in  ensure impatrtiality and balance, improve the information and
respect of communications and information policies and communications infrastructure of the developing countries
programmes submitted to the Committee on Information at bytransferring advanced information technology to them and
its twentieth session. expanding their access to information was more imperative

48. The Department of Public Information, as théhan ever, and to do so a new world information and
OrQanization’s focal point for informatio’n andcommunications order would have to be established and

communications, should be strengthened. His delegation Wg@lemented.

therefore pleased to see that notion reflected in the report of 51. The efforts by the Department of Public Information to
the Secretary-General (A/53/509) and also in draft resolution  reftegtiktic diversity in the information it mduced were

B from the Committee on Information, which emphasized that commendable. In that regard, the Department should diversify
the Department should maintain and improve its dtiig in  its programmes to include the languages of the great cultures
areas of special interest to the developing countries and others aitidations, including Farsi, which was spoken in a

with special needs, including countries with economies in numbeangftcies, including the Islamic Republic of Iran.
transition. By the same token, linguistic diversity should be applied to

49. The Romanian delegation recognized the importan%oad(?aStS bY United Nations R_adm, in order to _reach a
of the United Nations information centres, and considered tﬁ’é{?”dw'd‘? audience and serve the mteres?s of '?‘” regions. An
there were two points of particular significance. First, it wagaually mportan_t aspect . of the_ pilot |r_1ternat|0nal
concerned about the fact that the functional autonomy of tll?éoadcas_tlng_ prOJe_ct for U_n'tEd Natlon_s Radio should be
information centres was not always respected and theref@@tnership with national radio broadcasting networks. _It_ was
welcomed the consensus at the latest session of the Commite8€ ho_ped that the Dep_artment would _PfOV"?'e additional
on Information that future integration exercises should Hgformatpn on _the project for_ consideration _at the
carried out cost-effectively and on a case-by-case basfgr,thcomln_g Session of the Com_mltt_ee on Informat_lon._ Or’1e
taking into account the views of the host countries antovit _Of the main obj_e_ct_|ves of reorienting the_ Orgamza_tlon S
adversely affecting the centres’ information functions anlaformatlpn activities was to expand its capacity to
autonomy. Second, the Romanian Government continuedimunicate at the country level, and that gave the United
attach particular importance to the work of the United Natiorgations _mformatlon_ centres an important role to p_Iay. He
Information Centre in Bucharest, one of the first informatioﬁmphas_IZed that in the process of resFructurlng the
centres established by the United Nations. Unfortunately, oyBformation centres and establishing new regional hubs, the
the years financial and material support for the BuchareS€WS 0f Member States must be given due consideration.
Centre from the Department of Public Information haff€lations between the information centres and their host
gradually dropped. His delegation again appealed to tﬁgu'ntrles mlght |.nclude contacts gnd cooperanon with C|y|l
Department to consider adequate solutions to redress fi9&/€ organizations such as media agencies and educational
situation, and expressed its belief that in satisfying reque&tad research institutions.

from various Governments to open new centres, existing 52. He applauded the use of new technologies, in particular
centres should not be neglected. the Internet, to disseminate information on the global scale.
However, the Department should continue disseminating
'Hgormation through the traditional media anuosild provide

rd copy to meet the needs of countries with less advanced

50. Mr. Yousefi (Islamic Republic of Iran) said that his
delegation associated itself with the statement made by
representative of Indonesia on behalf of the Group of 77 a &
China. Information was a dynamic force for cross—culturgt?Chmlogy'

understanding, education and broader participation by peofllee meeting rose at 5.15 p.m.

10



A/C.4/53/SR.20

11



